# **Public Document Pack**



**Tracey Lee**Chief Executive

Plymouth City Council Civic Centre Plymouth PLI 2AA

Please ask for Ross Johnston,
Democratic Support
T 01752 307990
E ross.johnston@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy
10 September 2013

# **TAXI LICENSING COMMITTEE**

Thursday 19 September 2013 10am Council House, Plymouth (Next to the Civic Centre)

### **Members:**

Councillor Haydon, Chair
Councillor Bowie, Vice Chair
Councillors Mrs Bowyer, Mrs Foster, Mrs Nicholson, Rennie and Singh.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

Tracey Lee Chief Executive

## TAXI LICENSING COMMITTEE

#### **AGENDA**

#### **PART I - PUBLIC MEETING**

#### I. APOLOGIES

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members.

#### 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this agenda.

3. MINUTES (Pages I - 4)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 29 August 2013.

### 4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought forward for urgent consideration.

### 5. APPEAL CASES

The Committee will be provided with the results of the judgement on appeal cases that went to Court.

# 6. LICENSED HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER - REVIEW OF (Pages 5 - 8) LICENCE STATUS - J MCANDREW

The Director for Place will submit a report on a licensed hackney carriage driver review of licence status.

### 7. EXEMPT INFORMATION

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph(s) 3 and 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

## **PART II (PRIVATE MEETING)**

#### **AGENDA**

#### MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE

that under the law, the committee is entitled to consider certain items in private. Members of the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.

## 8. CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES (E3 AND E7)

(Pages 9 - 10)

To confirm the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 29 August 2013.

# 9. LICENSED PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER - REVIEW OF LICENCE (Pages 11 - 16) STATUS - KPE (E3 AND E7)

The Director for Place will submit a report on a licensed private hire driver review of licence status.

# 10. APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A RESTRICTED (Pages 17 - 24) PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE - GHP (E3 AND E7)

The Director for Place will submit a report on an application for the grant of a restricted private hire driver's licence.

#### **LUNCH IPM - 2PM**

# 11. LICENSED HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER - REVIEW OF (Pages 25 - 34) LICENCE STATUS - SIB (E3 AND E7)

The Director for Place will submit a report on a licensed hackney carriage driver review of licence status.

# 12. APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PRIVATE HIRE (Pages 35 - 40) DRIVER'S LICENCE - SB (E3 AND E7)

The Director for Place will submit a report on an application for the grant of a private hire driver's licence.



# **Taxi Licensing Committee**

### Thursday 29 August 2013

#### PRESENT:

Councillor Haydon, in the Chair. Councillor Bowie, Vice Chair. Councillors Mrs Foster, Mrs Nicholson, Rennie and Singh.

Apology for absence: Councillors Mrs Bowyer

Also in attendance: George Curness (Licensing Officer), Sharon Day (Legal Officer) and Ross Johnston (Democratic Support Officer).

The meeting started at 10 am and finished at 12.05 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have been amended.

#### 36. **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

There were no declarations of interest made by councillors in accordance with the code of conduct.

#### 37. MINUTES

Agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2013 are confirmed as a correct record.

#### 38. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of chair's urgent business.

#### 39. APPEAL CASES

The committee was advised that there had been one new appeal case since the last meeting where the committee's decision had been upheld by the court.

#### 40. **EXEMPT INFORMATION**

Agreed that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 7 of Part I Schedule 12a of the Act, as amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

### 41. **CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES (E3 AND E7)**

<u>Agreed</u> that the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2013 are confirmed as a correct record.

# 42. LICENSED HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER - REVIEW OF LICENCE STATUS - KA (E3 AND E7)

The committee -

- (a) considered the report from the Director for Place;
- (b) heard from KA;
- (c) took the above report and all that was said by KA into consideration -

Members <u>agreed</u> to issue KA with a warning. This warning will remain on file and will be brought to committee's attention if KA appears before them again in the future. Further, due to the committee's concerns for public safety KA is required to complete the private hire/hackney carriage driving test within the next two months.

(Please note: there is a confidential part to this minute).

# 43. APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE - PAS (E3 AND E7)

The committee -

- (a) considered the report from the Director for Place;
- (b) heard from PAS and his representative;
- (c) took into account the above report and all that was said by PAS and his representative.

The committee <u>agreed</u> to grant PAS's application for a private hire driver's licence subject to him completing all the necessary pre-requisites and subject to him completing the VRQ driver qualification in Transporting Passengers by Taxi and Private Hire or equivalent within the first 12 months of being granted the licence. Members had decided to act outside of their general policy in this case due to the length of time that had passed.

(Please note: there is a confidential part to this minute).

# 44. APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE - MJT (E3 AND E7)

The committee -

(a) considered the report from the Director for Place;

# Page 3

- (b) heard from MJT and his representative;
- (c) took into account the above report and all that was said by MJT and his representative.

The committee <u>agreed</u> that MJT's application for a private hire driver's licence is granted subject to him completing all the necessary pre-requisites and also subject to him completing a VRQ driver qualification in Transporting Passengers by Taxi and Private Hire or equivalent within the first 12 months of any licence being issued to him.

# Page 5 Agenda Item 6 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Licensed Hackney Carriage Driver – Review of Licence Status

Committee Taxi Licensing Committee

Date: 19 September 2013

Cabinet Member: Councillor Coker

CMT Member: Anthony Payne – Director for Place

Author: George Curness – Licensing Officer (Taxis)

Contact: Tel. 01752 307964

e-mail george.curness@plymouth.gcsx.gov.uk

Ref: ERS/LIC/GC/jm

Key Decision: No

Part:

### Purpose of the report:

For Members of the Committee to consider the review of the Hackney Carriage drivers licence held by Mr James McAndrew, having due regard for the information contained within the report, any representations made by Mr McAndrew and the Taxi Licensing Policy of the Council.

### The Brilliant Co-operative Council Corporate Plan 2013/2014 – 2016/2017

This report links to the delivery of the City and Council priorities.

In particular: Growing Plymouth and Caring Plymouth.

# Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications: Including finance, human, IT and land

Not applicable.

# Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management:

Members should be aware that Section 17 of the Crime Disorder Act 1998 put a statutory duty on every Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the need to do all that it reasonably can do to prevent crime and disorder in its area.

### **Equality and Diversity**

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken - No

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:							
It is recommended that the Members consider this report.							
Alternative options considered and rejected							
None.							
Published Work/Information None							
Background papers: None							

**Sign off:** comment must be sought from those whose area of responsibility may be affected by the decision, as follows (insert initials of Finance and Legal reps, and of HR, Corporate Property, IT and Strat. Proc. as appropriate)

Fin		Leg	SD/14349/2.9.13	Mon Off		HR		Assets		IT		Strat Proc	
Originating SMT Member													
Has th	Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? No												

#### Report

- 1. Mr James McAndrew is a Hackney Carriage driver, first licensed by this Council as a Private Hire driver on 31 May 2002. He transferred to Hackney Carriage on 4 June 2004, and has periodically renewed his Hackney carriage drivers' licence to date. His current Hackney Carriage licence is due to expire on 8 December 2015.
- 2. On 27 August 2013, the taxi licensing office received a letter from Mr McAndrew, informing the Licensing Office of a conviction. Mr McAndrew advised that he had received a conviction for ABH at Plymouth Magistrates Court on 21 August 2013 and was given a community order which included 40 hours community work, and ordered to pay compensation of £4,748 and a surcharge of £60.
- 3. A Court memo of convictions was requested and received on 2 September 2013 and the following facts were confirmed:

## On 21 August 2013 at South and West Devon Magistrates' Court

Mr McAndrew pleaded guilty to occasioning Actual Bodily Harm, contrary to \$.47 of the Offences Against the Person Act 1861.

He was sentenced to a Community Order with a requirement that he carries out 40 hours unpaid work within the next 12 months. He was ordered to pay compensation of £4748 and to pay victim surcharge of £6. There was no order for costs as compensation takes priority.

- 4. An inspection of the DVLA licence held by Mr. McAndrew reveals no current endorsements.
- 5. Members are asked to consider whether Mr. McAndrew is a 'fit and proper' person in light of the above conviction and determine what if any sanction should be applied to his Hackney Carriage driver licence.
- 6. The actions open to Members are those contained in Section 19(1) (a) and (b) of the Plymouth City Council Act 1975 which empowers the Council to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew the licence of a driver of a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle if the driver has, since the grant of his licence, been convicted for any offence involving violence or for any other reasonable cause.
- 7. In reaching their decision, Members must have regard to the Council's Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy. The relevant parts of the Council's policy are detailed below:

### **General Policy**

The Council's Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing policy states that the Council will carry out its Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing function with a view to promoting stated objectives. Members must therefore ensure that they consider those objectives when forming a decision.

The Licensing objectives are as follows:

- 1. Safety and health of drivers and the public e.g.
  - Consideration of history of convictions and cautions
  - Driver training, qualification and performance
  - Health and Fitness to fulfil the role
  - Crime prevention measures
- 2. Vehicle safety, comfort and access

# Page 8

- 3. To prevent crime and disorder and to protect consumers e.g.
  - Commitment to work with the police and licensing authorities
- 4. To encourage environmental sustainability

## **Chapter 2. – Conditions of Licence**

**Paragraph 12.3** states that when considering whether someone is 'fit and proper' the authority will consider amongst other things

- Relevant skills
- Knowledge
- Experience
- Qualifications
- Criminal record (as to relevance of offences see below)
- Previous history as a licence holder

## **Chapter 4** - **Enforcement Policy**

**Paragraph 8.1** - Allows the Council to revoke any licence where it is satisfied that the licence holder is, for example, no longer a 'fit and proper' person or a breach of a condition of licence has been established.

**Paragraph 8.2** - Requires that when considering revocation, the Committee will take into account all relevant facts and circumstances including licensing objectives, nature of the breach and any other information thought pertinent to the matter being considered.

**Paragraph 10.1** – States that a disciplinary hearing is for any matter concerning the breach of any licence condition or statutory regulation that may require a sanction being sought against any licence, and is determined by the Licensing Committee.

**Paragraph 10.2** - Gives the Committee the discretion to direct a driver appearing them to complete further training or retraining, should the drivers' suitability to retain a licence be called into question.

#### Guidance on the Relevance of Convictions

**Paragraph I** – States that the disclosure of a criminal record or other information will not automatically prevent any applicant from obtaining a licence, unless the council considers the conviction renders the applicant unsuitable. In making its decision the Council will consider the relevance of any offence, the seriousness of the offence, the length of time since the offence occurred and any pattern of offending behaviour.

**Paragraph 2** - States that offences involving violence are relevant offences for considering the suitability of a person to hold or retain a licence.

**Paragraph 8** – States that any driver who receives a conviction within their licence period will be referred to the Licensing Committee (Hackney Carriage) in order that the status of their licence may be reviewed. The above guidance will be followed in such cases.

- 8. Members are made aware the Mr McAndrew has yet to complete the VRQ driver qualification in "Transporting Passengers by Taxi and Private Hire" or its equivalent. There was no requirement for Mr McAndrew to complete this qualification as he was licensed prior to 2008, when the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy was adopted.
- 9. Mr McAndrew has been invited to attend this Licensing Committee in order that this matter may be considered.

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.